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B-3007 - B-3015 1810-25/1850-51 
738-722 S. Charles St. (West side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

738 and 722 S. Charles St. (the two corner houses) are the oldest 
houses on this side of the 700 block of S. Charles St., having been built 
in the period between 1810 and 1825, or perhaps earlier. 738 S. Charles St. 
is two and a half stories in height, four bays wide on S. Charles St. and 
two bays wide on W. Montgomery St., with a dormer window facing both streets. 
The first floor area most recently served as a local grocery and there is a 
late, corner storefront entrance set diagonally to the corner of S. Charles 
and Montgomery Streets. 722 S. Charles St. is a two and a half story, two 
bay wide brick house built by a local house carpenter, Thomas Hollingsworth, 
that shows the one room deep floor plan used in the earliest Federal-style 
houses built in the area. The remaining houses on the street are all three 
stories in height and two bays wide. All were originally built with gable 
roofs, like the present-day 734, 732, 730, 726, and 724 S. Charles St., but 
728 and 736 S. Charles St. were remodeled after the Civil War in the currently 
fashionable Italianate style and now have shed roofs and bracketed cornices. 
This group of three story houses was built in 1850-1851 to serve as combination 
storefront/residences for the increasing number of small shopkeepers moving 
into the area to meet the needs of the growing population. 
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This three story, shed roof structure with bracketed cornice is a remodeling 
of the original gable roofed structure on this site, part of a group of similar 
houses extending along this side of Charles St. 

The building is a full three stories in height, is 14' wide and runs back 
on its lot about . It is constructed in running bond. The shed roof is surmounted 
by a cornice of Italianate design consisting of a deeply projecting crown molding 
with a scroll sawed design of vine motifs across its two lower panels. Three 
carved wooden brackets connect the cornice to a lower molding strip. The brick 
freize thereby defined is punctuated by two scroll sawed ventilating panels. 
The window openings of the second and third floors have flat stone lintels and 
wood sills. No original sash remains and the openings are boarded. 

The original first floor store front has been completely plastered over, 
but the bracketed, Italianate style cornice that extends across the entire width 
of the projecting shop front remains. It consists of a deeply projecting crown 
molding supported by carved wooden brackets. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This house is representative of a fairly large number of houses in the Federal 
Hill area that were originally built in the 1840's and 1850's as gable roofed houses 
but which were remodeled after the Civil War in the currently fashionable Italianate 
style, with shed roof and bracketed cornice. The house was built, along with its 
neighbors, to serve as a combination residential/commercial structure. The first 
floor area served as a store-front and the family lived on the two floors above. 
Buildings of this type were designed to meet the needs of the influx of small shop­
keepers who were moving into the area to service the growing community. The first 
,ccupant of the house, Christopher Scherer, operated variously as a cabinetmaker, a 
wagoner, and a dealer in flour barrels from this location.1- The second occupant of 
the house, Emanuel Rapp, operated a tailor shop at the remodeled house in the late 
1860's.2 

The house was built by William Wight as part of a row of such houses extending 
from 724 to 730 S. Charles St. The house has recently been sold by the City to a 
private owner and will hopefully soon be restored. 

Baltimore City Directory, 1857, 1859, 1867-68 

2Ibid., 1868-9 
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